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Dear Professor Blackburn:

I have read and reread your letter of August 9, 1993 directed to President Hasselmo and
myself; indeed, I have reread it several times in an attempt to form a worthy reply. Each
time I became rapidly conscious that my reply was not the equal of the original. Please
allow me, although briefly, to attempt to respond to your thoughtful and painful letter.

I want to clearly state that the most important role and extremely high quality of the
School of Public health has been, and continues to be recognized by those of us in Central
Administration. The President has repeatedly spoken of the extremely high quality of the
School; the budgets of the School have also, I believe, reflected this regard. T attach
copies of the budget summary of the School (in terms of 0100/0300 funds, in constant
dollars) for the School and for the total University System. Please note that -- even in
constant dollars, and especially given our essentially flat budget for the University as a
whole -- the most important and distinguished role of the School has been recognized at
least budgetarily. Excuse me for sending these budgets, but I do not sense that the extent
to which dollars have been moved to sustain and strengthen programs such as the one in
Public Health seems to be appreciated or known.

This being said, I cannot but agree with almost all of the sentiments you have so
eloquently expressed in your letter. These are difficult times, not only at the University
of Minnesota, but at all universities. It is clear that the universities able to survive these
difficult periods will be those that concentrate on the quality of their activities in
instruction, scholarship, and outreach.

There are two items in your letter with which I disagree. The first has to deal with the
$1,500 and $2,000 for promotional raises. I am certain that you understand these are
meant to be raises in excess of any merit increases granted, within the particular unit and
college, and above and beyond it. They are floors, certainly not ceilings. Unfortunately,
if salaries are frozen, they do become also ceilings. These amounts were set by the
University Senate. I brought them up for consideration again, at the last meeting with the
deans, for T was well aware of the concerns that you, and others, raise about them.
However, with two exceptions, the twenty two deans reconfirmed the present policy.

I fully agree that our salary structure is not what it should be; the salary freezes for two of
the last three years have brought all the defects, strains, and stresses of the present system
to the fore. The President, together with the Senate Consultative Committee, is in the
process of setting up a task force to reexamine the system. Let there be no confusion; at
the root of the problem is the fact that our three sources of funds -- state appropriations,
tuitions, and external grants -- have not kept up with inflation; and in the case of the state
appropriations , they have declined about 10% in the last three years. Itis clear that we
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must carefully manage ourselves in these circumstances, by appropriately reducing our
total activities in selected areas so as to support our areas of strength -- our "centers of
excellence."

The second item on which I wish to make a point is that the President and Central
Administration are determined to maintain the strength of the Health Sciences. Yes, there
are problems, especially in the Medical School. But, there is also quality and excellence,
and we are convinced that the problems can be solved. Above all, we must look forward
and build on excellence rather than dwelling on past errors.

I close by stating that your message has been clearly received. I will personally do my
best to overcome the "absence of true merit evaluation and reward in this system either as
individuals or as institutions of excellence."

Thank you for your thoughtful letter.

Cordially yours,

Professot, Senior Vice President for
Academic Affairs and Provost

EFI/Imh
Enclosure

cc: Nils Hasselmo, President
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